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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Roy Lewis, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Selectmen 
Town of Homer, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Homer, Louisiana, 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town of Homer's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management*s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor ̂ s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide. Those standards and the guide 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
107B West Alabama Avenue, Ruston, Louisiana 71270 • Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Homer 
Independent Auditor's Report 
December 31. 2017 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Homer, Louisiana, as of 
December 31, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis (pages 4-7), budgetary comparison information (pages 46-
49), the schedule of employer's proportionate share of net pension liability (page 50), and the 
schedule of employer's contributions (page 51) be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Homer's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor 
fund financial statements; the schedule of compensation to the Mayor and Board of Selectmen; and 
the schedule of compensation, benefits, reimbursements and other payments to Agency Head; are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 
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The combining fund financial statements; the schedule of compensation to the Mayor and Board of 
Selectmen; and the schedule of compensation, benefits, reimbursements, and other payments to or on 
Behalf of Agency Head; and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial 
statements; the schedule of compensation to the Mayor and Board of Selectmen; and the schedule of 
compensation, benefits, reimbursements and other payments to Agency Head; are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 
2018, on our consideration of the Town of Homer, Louisiana's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its conq)liance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of oiu: 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and conq)liance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Town of Homer, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
June 29, 2018 



TOWN OF HOMER, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2017 

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Homer, Louisiana (the Town) provides an overview of 
the Town's activities for the year ended December 31, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the 
Town's financial statements. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the Town as a whole. 

Reporting the Town as a Whole 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is 
similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues 
and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two 
statements report the Town's net position and changes in net position. The Town's net position (i.e., 
the difference between assets and liabilities) is a measure of the Town's financial position. The 
increases or decreases in the Town's net position are an indicator of whether its financial position is 
improving or deteriorating. 

THE TOWN AS A WHOLE 

At December 31, 2017, net position was as follows: 

NET POSITION 

Governmental Activities 
2017 2016 

Business-type Activities 
2017 2016 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets, net 

S 982,078 
3,844,064 

$ 762,328 
4,037,047 

S 1,030,571 
9,089,585 

972,993 
7,799,612 

Total assets 4,826,142 4,799,375 10,120,156 8,772,605 

Deferred outflows: 
Pension related 503,130 452,902 

Liabilities: 
Current 
Long-term 

88,633 
1344,001 

141,643 
1,158,859 

455349 
4,370,753 

228,577 
4,009,874 

Total liabilities 1,432,634 1,300,502 4,826,002 4,238,451 

Deferred intflows: 
Pension related 55,958 125,352 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

3,844,064 

(3,384) 

4,037,047 

(210,624) 5,294,154 

3,789,738 
394,618 
349,798 

Total net position $ 3,840,680 $ 3,826,423 S 5,294,154 $ 4,534,154 



TOWN OF HOMER, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2017 

Net position of the Town's govemmental activities decreased .19 percent during the year ended 
December 31, 2017. Net position decreased to a deficit of $7,439. Revenues decreased $829,568 
while expenses increased $168,408. 

Net position of the business-type activities increased from $4,534,154 to $5,165,833. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, net position changed as follows: 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

Program revenues: 
Charges for services $ 177,658 $ 137,823 $ 1,213,451 $ 1,158,555 
Operating grants and contributions 104,093 1,240,989 - -
Capital grants and contributions - 16,500 582,127 196,816 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 130,791 151,206 - -
Sales and use taxes 1,229,842 1,138,237 350,010 308,740 
Other taxes, licenses and permits 217,708 220,823 - -
Other 443,820 206,207 21,774 18,529 

Total revenues 2,303,912 3,111,785 2,167,362 1,682,640 
Expenses: 

General government 595,600 474,342 - -
Public safety 907,909 916,937 - -
Highways and stteets 351,526 374,842 - -
Health and welfare 21,923 23,419 - -
Culture and recreation 161,236 138,437 - -
Economic development 251,462 193,271 - -
Utilities - - 1,308,410 1,288,421 
Interest expense - - 98,952 96,256 

Total expenses 2,289,656 2,121,248 1,407,362 1,384,677 
Change in net position 14,256 990,537 760,000 297,963 
Net position at beginning of year 3,826,424 2,835,886 4,534,154 4,236,191 
Net position at end of year $ 3,840,680 $ 3,826,423 $ 5,294,154 $ 4,534,154 



TOWN OF HOMER, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2017 

As of December 31, 2017, the Town's Police Fund had a deficit balance of $16,980. The General 
Fund has a fund balance of $446,740 which is a 124 percent increase from prior year. During the 
year the Town recorded transfers of $354,727. 

The Street Fund balance increased $72,214 or 204 percent. Fund balance at year end was $107,641. 
Revenues increased while expenditures decreased. Transfers in were $9,055 compared to $194,363 
in the prior year. 

The fund balance of the Industrial Development Fund decreased by $48,883 or 34 percent. The 
voters approved a rededication of the sales tax that was previously dedicated to industrial 
development. 

Fund balance of the Police fund decreased to a deficit of $16,980. 

Fund balance of the Enterprise Fund increased by 14 percent. Operations resulted in a loss of 
$223,280 after expenses of $1,308,410. Grants and sales taxes made up the loss before transfers. The 
net change in position was $631,679. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
During the year, in the General Fund, there was a $64,860 increase in anticipated revenues. The 
change in estimate was due to increases in taxes. Anticipated expenditures increased $30,540 or 6 
percent. Actual revenues and other sources exceeded budgeted amounts by $5,917 or 1 percent. 
Actual expenditures and other uses exceeded budgeted amounts by $20,264 or 4 percent primarily 
due to a negative budget balance in 'Town Hall Renovations". 

During the year in the Street Fund, anticipated revenues and expenditures decreased by .24 and 12 
percent, respectively. Actual revenues and other sources and expenditures and other uses exceeded 
budgeted amounts by 1 and 1 percent, respectively. 

In the Industrial Development Fund, budgeted revenues increased by $10,570. Budgeted 
expenditures were increased by 32 percent. Actual amounts exceeded budget by 9 and 5 percent, 
respectively. 

In the Police Fund, budgeted revenues decreased by 2 percent while budgeted expenditures, 
excluding capital outlay, increased only $10,229 or 1 percent. Actual revenues and other sources 
decreased by 1 percent while actual expenditures and other uses decreased by 3 percent. 



TOWN OF HOMER, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31. 2017 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
As of December 31, 2017, the Town's investment in capital assets for its govemmental and business-
type activities amounts to $12,933,649 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment includes 
the water and sewer systems, buildings and improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, and 
land. 

This year's additions of $1,606,674 include projects funded by grants such as airport improvements, 
building improvements, a police vehicle, and water and sewer improvements as well as minor 
equipment purchases. 

Debt 
At year end, the Town had $1,960,000 in bonds outstanding and $2,410,753 in federal loans 
outstanding. See discussion of the terms in the notes to the financial statements. 

At December 31, 2017, the Town's net pension liability at year end was $1,344,001. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Town's revenues are derived mainly from a special sales and use tax, property tax assessments, 
and fees for services. The Town uses grant monies to make necessary repairs and upgrades to the 
town's water and sewer systems. 

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general 
overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town 
Clerk at Town Hall. The financial statements of Homer Memorial Hospital are issued separately and 
may be obtained from the hospital's business office, the parish clerk of court, or the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor at www.lla.la.gov. 

http://www.lla.la.gov
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2017 

ASSETS 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
$ 805,715 $ 451,784 3 ; 1,257,499 

- 388,348 388,348 
239,996 124,676 364,672 
(65,763) 65,763 -
137,993 4,584,776 4,722,769 

3,706,071 4,504,809 8,210,880 
2,130 - 2,130 

4,826,142 10,120,156 14,946,298 

503,130 503,130 
503,130 - 503,130 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents - restticted 
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles 
Internal balances 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Other assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
Pension related 
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTELOWS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Payroll and related liabilities 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 
Customer deposits payable 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 
Net pension liability 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEEERRED INELOWS 
Pension related 
TOTAL DEEERRED INELOWS 

NET POSITION 

64,535 
22,748 
1.350 

320.362 

8,149 
126,738 

214,000 
4.156.753 

1.344.001 

384,897 
22,748 

1,350 
8,149 

126,738 

214,000 
4,156,753 
1,344,001 

1,432,634 4,826,002 6,258,636 

55,958 55,958 
55,958 - 55,958 

3,844,064 - 3,844,064 
(3,384) 5,294,154 5,290,770 

$ 3,840,680 $ 5,294,154 $ 9,134,834 

Net investaient in capital assets 
Unrestricted net position 
TOTAL NET POSITION 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OE ACTIVITIES 
EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

EUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 

Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 

Total governmental activities 
Business-type activities: 

Utility operations 
Interest e>q)ense on water debt 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

EXPENSES 

OPERATING CAPITAL 
GRANTS AND GRANTS AND < 

CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS 

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

CHARGES EOR 
SERVICES 

595,600 
907,909 
351,526 
21,923 
161,236 
251.462 

95,179 
81.579 

177. 

1,308,410 
98.952 

1.407.362 
3.697.018 

1.213.451 

1,213,451 
1.391.109 

63.000 

31.103 
104.093 

582.127 

582.127 
104.093 582.127 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Other taxes, penalties and interest 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 
Other 

Total general revenues and transfers 
Change in net position 
Net position at beginning of year 
Net position at end of year 

OOVERNMENTALBUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

$ (500,421) a ; (500,421) 
(763,330) (763,330) 
(341,536) (341,536) 

(21,023) (21,023) 
(161,236) (161,236) 
(220,359) (220,359) 

(2,007,905) (2,007,905) 

$ 487,168 487,168 
(98,952) (98,952) 
388,216 388,216 

(2,007,905) 388,216 (1,619,689) 

130,791 130,791 
1,229,842 350,010 1,579,852 

118,730 - 118,730 
98,978 - 98,978 

9,002 9,124 18,126 
322,526 - 322,526 
112,292 12,650 124,942 

2,022,161 371,784 2,393,945 
14,256 760,000 774,256 

3,826,424 4,534,154 8,360,578 
$ 3,840,680 $ 5,294,154 a ; 9,134,834 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
10 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2017 

Industrial 
General Street Development Police Nonmajor Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 370,524 $ 75,768 $ 151,471 $ 14,383 $ 193,569 $ 805,715 
Receivables, net 135,259 33,454 600 38,799 31,884 239,996 
Other assets 2,130 - - - - 2,130 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 507,913 $ 109,222 $ 152,071 $ 53,182 $ 225,453 $ 1,047,841 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 1,385 $ 1,581 $ 58,702 $ 2,664 $ 203 $ 64,535 
Payroll and related liabilities 22,748 - - - - 22,748 
Accrued liabilities 1,350 - - - - 1,350 
Unearned revenue 15,730 - - - - 15,730 
Due to other funds - - - 65,763 - 65,763 

Total liabilities 41,213 1,581 58,702 68,427 203 170,126 

Fund balances: 
Restricted fund balances 267,292 107,641 93,369 - 225,250 693,552 
Unassigned fund balances 199,408 - - (15,245) - 184,163 

Total fund balances 466,700 107,641 93,369 (15,245) 225,250 877,715 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BAEANCES $ 507,913 $ 109,222 $ 152,071 $ 53,182 $ 225,453 $ 1,047,841 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
11 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OE THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS' BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OE NET POSITION 

AS OE DECEMBER 31,2017 

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 877,715 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 3,844,064 

Unearned revenue from the fund financial statements recognized in the 
government-wide financial statements 15,730 

Deferred items for pension related items are not reported in the fund 
statements: 

Deferred outflows 503,130 
Deferred inflows (55,958) 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the fund statements: 

Net pension liablity (1,344,001) 

Net position of governmental activities $ 3,840,680 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
12 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL EUNDS 
STATEMENT OE REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN EUND BALANCES 
EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Industrial 
General Street Devlopment Police Nonmajor Total 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem $ 124,058 $ $ $ $ $ 124,058 
Sales and use 333,336 338,048 - 268,257 290,201 1,229,842 
Franchise 118,730 - - - - 118,730 
Other taxes, penalties and interest 80,196 - - - 18,782 98,978 

Licenses and permits 63,189 - - - - 63,189 
Intergovernmental: 

State funds: 
Fire insurance rebate - - - - 25,000 25,000 
Supplemental pay - - - 38,000 - 38,000 
Other state funds 3,482 9,990 31,103 - - 44,575 

Charges for services 24,258 - - 9,740 60 34,058 
Fines - - - 71,779 - 71,779 
Lease income 4,250 - 900 - - 5,150 
Interest earned 4,188 470 1,975 193 2,176 9,002 
Other revenues 80,675 1,060 (5,880) 1,667 8,215 85,737 

Total revenues 836,362 349,568 28,098 389,636 344,434 1,948,098 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government: 
Legislative 23,200 - - - - 23,200 
Finance and administrative 243,813 - - - - 243,813 
Other general government 222,310 - - - - 222,310 

Public safety: 
Lease/Rent 26,327 - - - - 26,327 
Police Department - - - 756,993 - 756,993 
Fire Department - - - - 94,927 94,927 

Flighways and streets - 279,709 - - - 279,709 
Flealth and welfare 15,223 6,700 - - - 21,923 
Culture and recreation 12,026 - - - 138,910 150,936 
Economic development - - 74,731 - 51,376 126,107 

Capital outlay - - 2,250 25,457 30,645 58,352 
Total e>q)enditures 542,899 286,409 76,981 782,450 315,858 2,004,597 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) e>q)enditures 293,463 63,159 (48,883) (392,814) 28,576 (56,499) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 10,231 9,055 - 356,672 18,845 394,803 
Operating transfers out (354,727) - - - (40,076) (394,803) 
Sale of capital assets 318,326 - - - 4,200 322,526 

Total other financing sources and uses (26,170) 9,055 - 356,672 (17,031) 322,526 

Net change in fund balances 267,293 72,214 (48,883) (36,142) 11,545 266,027 
Eund balances at beginning of year 199,407 35,427 142,252 20,897 213,705 611,688 

Eund balances at end of year $ 466,700 5 K 107,641 $ 93,369 $ (15,245) $ 225,250 $ 877,715 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
13 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS' STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 266,027 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlays 58,352 
Depreciation (251,335) 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Revenues deferred in the prior year (8,997) 
Revenues deferred in the current year 15,730 

Payments of long-term debt, including contributions to the OPEB obligation, are reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds. However, these amounts are a reduction of long-
term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and are not reflected in the Statement of 
Activities. 

Pension expense (92,076) 
Contributions to pension plan from third parties 26,555 

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 14,256 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

14 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2017 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 451,784 
Receivables, net 124,676 
Due from other funds 65.763 

Total current assets 642,223 
Noncurrent assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 388,348 
Capital assets, net 9,089,585 

Total noncurrent assets 9.477.933 
TOTAL ASSETS 10.120.156 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 320,362 
Accrued interest on revenue bonds 8,149 
Customer deposits payable 126,738 

Total current liabilities 455,249 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Non-current liabilities due within one year 214,000 
Non-current liabilities due in more than one year 4,156,753 

Total noncurrent liabilities 4.370.753 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4.826.002 

NET POSITION 
Unrestricted net position 5,294,154 
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 5,294,154 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

15 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for sales and services: 

Water charges $ 917,567 
Sewer charges 281,983 
Garbage charges 13,901 

Total operating revenues 1,213,451 

Operating expenses: 
Depreciation e^ense 258,349 
Insurance expense 10,841 
Maintenance and repair 173,583 
Materials and supplies 27,283 
Operating costs 388,495 
Other e^enses 106,362 
Professional fees 8,682 
Salaries and related benefits 214,910 
Utilities 119,905 

Total operating expenses 1,308,410 

Operating income (loss) (94,959) 

Nonoperating revenues (e^enses): 
Sales and use taxes 350,010 
Intergovernmental revenues 582,127 
Interest earned 9,124 
Other revenues 12,650 
Interest e^ense (98,952) 

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 854,959 

Change in net position 760,000 
Net position at beginning of year 4,534,154 
Net position at end of year $ 5,294,154 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OE CASH ELOWS 
EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers and users $ 1,146,428 
Payments to suppliers (693,998) 
Payments to employees (148,285) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 304,145 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: 
None 

Cash flows from noncapital frnancing activities: 
Proceeds from sales taxes 317,362 
Other receipts 21,774 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities 339,136 

Cash flows from capital and related frnancing activities: 
Proceeds from capital debt 813,900 
Proceeds from capital grants 582,127 
Purchases of capital assets (1,548,322) 
Principal paid on capital debt (453,021) 
Interest paid on capital debt (100,036) 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (705,352) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest received 9.124 

Net cash provided by investing activities 9,124 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (52,947) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

(including amounts in restricted accounts) 893,079 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 
(including amounts in restricted accounts) $ 840,132 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Operating loss $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation e>q)ense 258,349 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (71,249) 
(Increase) decrease in interfund balances (28,560) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 237,346 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 4,226 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (1, 

Total adjustments 399,104 
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 304,145 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Town of Homer, Louisiana, (the Town) was incorporated March 13, 1850, and granted a special 
charter under the provisions of Act No. 11 of the Louisiana Legislature. The Town operates under a Mayor-
Selectmen form of the government. The Town's major operations include public safety, streets, recreation, 
and parks, utilities, and general administrative services. 

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Town of Homer have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

The basic financial statements present the financial position and results of operations of the various funds 
by the Town and the cash flows of the proprietary fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Reporting Entity 
GASB Statement 14 established criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component 
units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, Town of 
Homer is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separately 
elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. 
As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent means that the Town of Homer may, without the 
approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes 
or set rates or charges, and issue bond debt. 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial report consists of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), basic financial 
statements, notes to basic financial statements, and required supplementary information other than the 
MD&A. The MD&A provides an overview of the financial activities of the Town. The basic financial 
statements include the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and the notes to 
the basic financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities. These statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Major revenues such as ad valorem taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual. Assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the government are 
reported in the financial statements. The statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the Town by reporting each in a separate column. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

The fund financial statements report the Town as a collection of major and nonmajor funds presented on 
separate schedules by fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. 

• The governmental fund statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances, with one column for the general fund, one for each of 
the other major funds, and one column combining all the nonmajor governmental funds. The 
statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they 
become measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period, generally 
considered sixty days after the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting 
period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest 
payments on general long-term liabilities which are recognized when due. 

• The proprietary fund statements include a statement of net position; a statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in fund net position; and a statement of cash flows. Each statement has a 
column for each major enterprise fund. The Town does not have any nonmajor proprietary funds or 
internal service funds. The proprietary fund statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in order to make a determination of net 
income, financial position, and cash flows. 

Although the financial statements presented in each of these three schedules contain "total" columns, 
they merely combine rather than consolidate the funds. Hence, interfund transactions that generate 
receivables and payables or transfers from one fund to another are not eliminated. 

Major funds are those whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities are at least ten percent 
of the total for their fund category or type (governmental or enterprise) and at least five percent of the 
corresponding element total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 

The data on the face of the three sets of financial statements must be accompanied by certain disclosures to 
ensure accurate information is presented in the form of a single set of notes to the basic financial 
statements. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
The major governmental funds of the Town are the General Fund, the Street Fund, the Industrial 
Development Fund, and the Police Fund. 

The General Fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Street Special Revenue Fund accounts for a sales tax levied for the purpose of maintaining 
streets. 

The Industrial Development Fund accounts for sales taxes and grants for the purpose of developing 
industry in the Town. 

The Police Fund accounts for the operations of the police department financed by sales taxes, 
grants, fines, and transfers from the General Fund. 

The Town reports one enterprise fund that accounts for the operation of the water system, sewer system, 
and garbage services. 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances 

Cash and Investments 
The Town Clerk pools those cash resources for which she is responsible and invests them accordingly. For 
purposes of the financial statements, including the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly 
liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to 
be cash equivalents. 

Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Cash and investment 
earnings are recorded in the Fund that holds the investment. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances (Continued) 

Receivables and Payables 
Activity between funds that is outstanding at the end the fiscal year is referred to as either "due to or from 
other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-
current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities 
and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal 
balances." All internal balances are eliminated in the total primary government column. Receivables 
include all amounts susceptible to accrual that have not been collected at December 31, but will be 
collected soon enough after the end of the year to pay liabilities of that year. They include all amounts 
earned, but not collected at December 31. Receivables (net of any uncollectible amounts) and payables are 
reported on separate lines. 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of December 31. Taxes are levied by the Town 
in September or October, are actually billed in November or December. Billed taxes become delinquent on 
January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year they are billed. 
The Town bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed value determined by the assessor of 
Claiborne Parish. For the year ended December 31, 2017, taxes of 8.45 mills were levied on property with 
assessed valuations totaling $14,762,782. The taxes are levied for general operating purposes. 

The following are the principal taxpayers and related property tax revenue for the Town: 

% of Total Ad Valorem Tax 
Assessed Assessed Revenue for 

Taxpayer Valuation Valuation Municipality 
Hays, James Michael $ 2,117,271 14% $ 17,891 
First Guaranty Bank 353,940 2% 2,991 
Gibsland Bank & Trust 310,960 2% 2,628 
Entergy Louisiana, Inc. 279,820 2% 2,364 
Centerpoint Energy - Arkl 242,271 2% 2,047 
Industrial Packaging Corp. 203,284 1% 1,718 
Brookshire Food Stores, Inc. 172,394 1% 1,457 
Hibemia national Bank 172,290 1% 1,456 
Cordell Properties, LLC 167,770 1% 1,418 
Bellsouth Telecommunication 145,171 1% 1,227 
Totals $ 4,165,171 28% $ 35,196 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances 

Inventories and Prepaid Items 
Inventories consisting of office supplies and water and sewer plant supplies held for consumption are 
valued using the average cost method. The consumption method is used for financial reporting. Certain 
payments reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Restricted Assets 
Restricted assets represent primarily cash and investments held separately and restricted according to bond 
indenture agreements. Cash held for water customer meter deposits is also reported as restricted. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 
Infrastructure acquired or constructed after the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 is reported. 
Capital assets are recorded as expenditures in each fund and capitalized at the government-wide level; fixed 
assets of business-type activities are reported in the Enterprise Fund. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. For 
reporting purposes, the Town defines capital assets as follows: 

• Land is an inexhaustible asset with no capitalization threshold and an unlimited useful life; 
therefore, it is not depreciated. 

• Buildings are permanent structures erected above ground, while improvements are major repairs, 
renovations, or additions that increase the future service potential of the asset. Leasehold 
improvements are improvements made by the lessee to leased property. They are depreciated 
principally using the straight-line method with an estimated useful life typically between 10 to 40 
years for structures and improvements and 20 years for depreciable land improvements. Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated using the straight-line method with an estimated useful life 
depending on the term of the lease. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated. 

• Movable property (furniture, equipment, and vehicles) consists of assets that are not fixed or 
stationary in nature. The straight-line method of depreciation is used, which divides the historical 
cost by the estimated useful life of the asset, generally 5 to 10 years. 

• Infrastructure assets are roads, bridges, tunnels, drainage systems, water and sewer systems, dams, 
and lighting systems. Infrastructure is depreciated using the straight-line method with an estimated 
useful life of 40 years. 

• Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position, Equity, or Net Fund Balances 

Compensated absences 
Employees of the Town earn vacation leave depending upon their length of service. Employees may not 
accumulate and carryforward days of vacation leave beyond the end of each calendar year except in cases 
of emergency. In addition, employees can earn compensatory leave for working overtime. All vacation and 
compensatory leave is expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources and thus is considered 
short-term and recognized as a liability as appropriate. 

Long-Term Obligations 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities. In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the proprietary fund type statement of net position. Individual 
funds have been used to liquidate other long-term liabilities such as compensated absences, claims and 
litigation payable, etc. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds. In accordance with paragraph 16 of the Accounting Principles Board Opinion 
No. 21, unamortized balances of premiums and discounts are netted against the outstanding balance of the 
related bonds payable. 

Fund Balance Classifications and Net Position 
Fund balances are reported under the following fund balance classifications: 

Non-spendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 

Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in 
spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Includes amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally 
imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of 
the Town Council and does not lapse at year-end. 

Includes amounts that are constrained by the Council's intent to be used for 
specific purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. 

Includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been 
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. 
Negative fund balances in other governmental funds can also be classified as 
unassigned. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Balance Classifications and Net Position (Continued) 
The Town has a general policy to first use restricted resources for expenditures incurred for which both 
restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) resources are available. When 
expenditures are incurred for which only unrestricted resources are available, the general policy of the 
Town is to use committed resources first, followed by assigned, and then unassigned. The use of 
restricted/committed resources may be deferred based on a review of the specific transaction. 

The difference between assets and liabilities is "net position" on the government-wide, proprietary, and 
fiduciary fund statements. Net position is segregated into three categories on the government-wide 
statement of net position: 

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either 
by (1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislations. 
The Town first uses restricted net position for expenses incurred when both restricted and 
unrestricted net position are available for use. The use of restricted net position may be 
deferred based on a review of the specific transaction. 

Unrestricted net position - The balance of net position that does not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation of the government-wide statements to the 
governmental fund financial statements. This reconciliation is necessary to bring the financial statements 
from the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting to the 
economic measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. Major items included in the 
reconciliation are capital assets, inventories and prepaids, long-term debt, accrued interest, long-term 
liabilities, and deferred revenue, which are shown on the government-wide but not the governmental fund 
statements. 

24 



TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Balance Classifications and Net Position (Continued) 
Budgets 
The Town of Homer (Mayor and Board) uses the following budget practices: 

Prior to December 31, the Town Clerk submits to the Mayor and Selectmen a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming year. The budget is 
submitted in summary form. In addition, more detailed line item budgets are included for 
administrative control. The level of control for the detailed budgets is at the department 
head/function level. 

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment. 

During the month of July, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund. 

Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis. 

Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

The Mayor and Selectmen may authorize supplemental appropriations during the year. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The Town's policy to ensure that there is no exposure to this risk is to require each financial 
institution to pledge its own securities to cover any amount in excess of Federal Depository Insurance 
Coverage. The policy is not a formal written policy. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being 
notified by the Town that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

At December 31, 2017, the Town has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling $1,645,847 as 
follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Demand deposits $ 1,645,347 
Odier 500 

Total $ 1,645,847 

These deposits are stated at cost which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by 
the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at 
all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. As of December 31, 2017, the Town's bank balances were exposed to 
custodial credit risk as follows: 

Insured by FDIC $ 250,000 

Uninsured and uncollateralized 
Collateralized by pledged securities not in the Town's name 1,620,221 

Total balances exposed to custodial credit risk 1,620,221 
Total bank balances $ 1,870,221 

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES 

The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 2017: 
Industrial 

General Street Development Police Nonmajor Enterprise Total 

Taxes and licenses $ 155,300 $ 33,454 $ $ 34,167 $ 31,884 $ $ 254,805 
Accounts - - - - 123,820 123,820 
Intergovernmental - - 1,830 - - 1,830 
Other 2,985 - 600 2,802 - 856 7,243 

Gross receivables 158,285 33,454 600 38,799 31,884 124,676 387,698 
Less allowance for 

un collectibles (23,026) - - - - (23,026) 

Net receivables $ 135,259 $ 33,454 $ 600 $ 38,799 $ 31,884 $ 124,676 $ 364,672 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2017, follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

$ 135,743 
1,158,140 

$ 
2,250 

$ - ; 
(1,158,140) 

K 135,743 
2,250 

Total capital assets 
not being depreciated 1,293,883 2,250 (1,158,140) 137,993 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 3,330,717 - - 3,330,717 
Land improvements 2,926,318 1,158,140 - 4,084,458 
Buildings 921,398 9,635 - 931,033 
Building improvements 324,784 - - 324,784 
Furniture and equipment 300,870 21,010 (37,474) 284,406 
Vehicles 632,981 25,457 (28,660) 629,778 
Total capital assets 

being depreciated 8,437,068 1,214,242 (66,134) 9,585,176 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure 2,306,199 71,222 - 2,377,421 
Land improvements 1,808,511 123,600 - 1,932,111 
Buildings 689,090 13,341 - 702,431 
Building improvements 78,517 12,953 - 91,470 
Furniture and equipment 266,635 8,658 (37,474) 237,819 
Vehicles 544,952 21,561 (28,660) 537,853 
Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets 

being depreciated 
Governmental activities, 

capital assets, net 

5,693,904 251,335 (66,134) 5,879,105 Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets 

being depreciated 
Governmental activities, 

capital assets, net 

2,743,164 962,907 3,706,071 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets 

being depreciated 
Governmental activities, 

capital assets, net $ 4,037,047 $ 965,157 $(1,158,140) 5 K 3,844,064 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 

Construction in progress 

$ 13,330 

3,223,889 

$ 

1,347,557 

$ $ 13,330 

4,571,446 

Total capital assets 

not being depreciated 3,237,219 1,347,557 4,584,776 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 

Buildings 

Furniture and equipment 

Vehicles 

12,235,479 

127,367 

83,358 

176,698 

200,765 - 12,436,244 

127,367 

83,358 

176,698 

Total capital assets 

being depreciated 12,622,902 200,765 12,823,667 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure 

Buildings 

Furniture and equipment 

Vehicles 

7,696,160 

127,367 

82,524 

154,458 

249,391 

239 

8,719 

- 7,945,551 

127,367 

82,763 

163,177 

Total accumulated depreciation 8,060,509 258,349 - 8,318,858 

Total capital assets 

being depreciated 4,562,393 (57,584) 4,504,809 
Business-type activities, 

capital assets, net $ 7,799,612 $ 1,289,973 $ $ 9,089,585 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government $ 14,201 

Public safety 29,662 

Highways and stteets 71,817 

Culture and recreation 10,300 

Economic development 125,355 

Total $ 251,335 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Interfund transfers during the year ended December 31, 2017, were as follows: 

Transfers Transfers 

In Out 

General $ 10,231 $ 354,727 

Street 9,055 

Industtial Development 

Police 356,672 

Nonmajor 18,845 40,076 

Total $ 394,803 $ 394,803 

During the year, transfers were recorded to eliminate interfund balances for which the Town does not 
anticipate it will be able to clear otherwise. Additionally, transfers include unrestricted amounts transferred 
to subsidize other funds. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Debt is comprised of the following at December 31, 2017: 

2013 Revenue Bonds: 
$2,280,000 Sewer Revenue Bonds dated April 24, 2013, payable over a 
20 year period in annual installments ranging from $69,460-$ 157,519 
including interest through December 2033; interest at 3.25%. $ 1,960,000 

LDEQ Revolving Loan: 
The Town entered into a loan agreement with DEQ to fund system 
improvements not to exceed $3,500,000 in 2013. Upon the payment of 
each principal draw on the loan, twenty-eight and a half percent of the 
principal amount of each draw on the loan is forgiven. Total draws on 
the loan for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $1,007,600, of 
which $287,886 was forgiven. The loan bears interest at a rate of 
•4500%. 1,495,567 

LDHH Revolving Loan: 
The Town entered into a loan agreement with DHH to fund system 
improvements not to exceed $3,600,000 in 2015. Upon the payment of 
each principal draw on the loan, thirty percent of the principal amount 
of each draw on the loan is forgiven. Total draws on the loan for the 
year ended December 21, 2015 were $220,785, of which $66,235 was 
forgiven. The loan bears interest at a rate of 2.95%. 

915.186 

Total $ 4,370,753 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2017, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Revenue Bonds-2013 Issue $ 2,055,000 $ - $ (95,000) $ 1,960,000 $ 95,000 

LDEQ Revolving Loan 1,524,063 80,506 (109,002) 1,495,567 119,000 

LDHH Revolving Loan 430,811 733,394 (249,019) 915,186 

Net pension liability 1,158,860 185,141 - 1,344,001 

Total $ 5,168,734 $ 999,041 $ (453,021) $ 5,714,754 $ 214,000 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds are as follows: 
2013 

Revenue 
Bonds 

2018 95,000 

2019 100,000 

2020 100,000 

2021 105,000 

2022 110,000 

2023-2027 595,000 

2028-2032 700,000 

2033 155,000 
Total $ 1,960,000 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentiures. The Town is in 
compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

Literest expense for business-type activities for the year ended December 31, 2017, totaled $98,952. 

NOTE 7-EQUITY 

All funds' revenues include sales and use taxes which are restricted. Restricted net position is restricted for 
cash held for meter deposits and debt service. 

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Town of Homer contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 
which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. The System is composed of two 
distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the 
municipality are members of Plan A. 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan 
and are paid wholly or in part from municipal hinds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to 
participate in the System. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

Any member of Plan A who was hired before January 1, 2013, can retire providing the member meets on of 
the following criteria: 

1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten years of creditable service. 
3. Under age 60 with five years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five years creditable service at death of member. 
5. Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service with an actuarially reduced 

early benefit. 

Eligibility for retirement for Plan A members hired on or after January 1, 2013 is as follows: 

1. Any age with 25 or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with 10 or more years of creditable service. 
3. Under age 60 with five years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five years creditable service at death of member. 
5. Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service with an actuarially reduced 

early benefit. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A shall consist of an 
amount equal to 3% of the enq)loyee's final compensation multiplied by his or her years of creditable 
service. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified 
amounts. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by 
state statute. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer's total payroll for all employees was $868,189. 
Total covered payroll was $174,909. Covered payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Town of 
Homer to active enq)loyees covered by the Plan. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 925-4810, or by visiting the System's website www.mersla.com. 

Contributions 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the actual employer contribution rate was 22.75% for January 
through Jime and 24.75% for July through December for Plan A, actuarially determined as an amount that, 
when combined with enq)loyee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. In 
accordance with state statute, the System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These 
additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from non-
employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.50% of their annual covered salary. 
The contributions are deducted from the employee's wages or salary and remitted by the Town of Homer to 
the System monthly. The Town of Homer's contributions to the System under Plan A for the year ending 
December 31, 2017 were $41,538. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer reported a liability of $395,999 for its proportionate share of 
the Net Pension Liability. The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. The Town of Homer's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the 
Police Jury's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the Town's proportion was 
0.094659%, which was a decrease of 0.014606% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer recognized pension expense of $69,159 plus 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions, which was ($73,418). Total pension expense for the Town of 
Homer for the year ended December 31, 2017 was ($4,259). 

At December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 

$- $12,060 

Changes in assumption 6,621 -
Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 

79,853 

Changes in employer's portion 
of beginning net pension 
liability 

36,610 

Differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate 
share of employer contributions 

1 

Subsequent measurement 
contributions 

21,606 -

Total $108,081 $48,670 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

The $21,606 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Town of 
Homer's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of Net 
Pension Liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended December 31: 
2018 $19,804 
2019 19,804 
2020 19,804 

A ctuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as of 
June 30. 2017 is as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2017 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return 7.400% 
Inflation rate 2.775% 
Salary increases, including inflation and merit 5.000% 
increases 
Annuitant and beneficiary mortality RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Sex Distinct Mortality 

Tables set forward 2 years for males and set 
forward 1 year for females projected to 2028 using 
scale AA. 

Employee mortality RP-2000 Employees Sex Distinct Table set back 2 
years for both males and females. 

Disabled lives mortality RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table set back 5 
years for males and set back 3 years for females. 

Expected remaining service lives 3 years for Plan A 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the 
effect of rebalancing/diversification. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class included in the System's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following 
table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Public equity 50% 2.3% 
Public fixed income 35% 1.6% 
Alternatives 15% 0.7% 
Totals 100% 4.6% 

Inflation 2.6% 
Expected arithmetic nominal 
return 

7.2% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40% for the years ended June 30, 2017. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers 
will be made at the actuarially determined rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes 
and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on 
those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

The effects of certain other changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in pension 
expense over the current and future periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes of 
economic and demographic assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected and actual 
experience are required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with 
benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees), determined as of the 
beginning of the measurement period. The effect on net pension liability of differences between the 
projected earnings on pension plan investments and actual experience with regard to those earnings is 
required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed period of five 
years, beginning with the current period. The Expected Remaining Service Lives (ERSL) for 2017 is 3 
years for Plan A and 4 years for Plan B. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Town of Homer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the Town of Homer's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.40%, as well as what the Town of Homer's proportionate share of the net 
pension hability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower 
(6.40%) or one percentage-point higher (8.40%) than the current rate: 

1.0% 
Decrease 
(6.40%) 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(7.40%) 

1.0% 
Increase 
(8.40%) 

Employer's 
proportionate share of 
net pension liability 

$504,634 $395,999 $303,337 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

These financial statements include a payable to the pension plan of $13,271, which is the legally required 
contribution due at December 31, 2017. This amount is recorded in accrued expenses. 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Audit Report at www.mersla.com 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description 

The Town of Homer contributes to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 
(System) which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. Membership in the 
System is mandatory for all full-time police officers en^loyed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana 
and engaged in law enforcement, enq)owered to make arrests, providing he or she does not have to pay 
social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 

Any member of the Plan who was hired before January 1, 2013, can retire providing the member meets on 
of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 
2. Age 50 with a minimum of twenty or more years of crechtable service. 
3. Age 55 with a minimum of twelve or more years of creditable service. 
4. After 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

The monthly amount of benefits are 3 1/3% of their average final compensation (employee's average monthly 
earnings during the highest 36 consecutive or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years 
of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Eligibility for retirement for members hired on or after January 1, 2013 is as follows: 

Hazardous Duty 
1. Any age with 25 years of creditable service. 
2. Age 55 with twelve or more years of creditable service. 
3. After 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Non Hazardous Duty 
1. Any age with 30 years of creditable service. 
2. Age 55 with 25 or more years of creditable service. 
3. Age 60 with 10 or more years of creditable service. 
4. After 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

The benefit rates are three percent and two and a half percent, respectively, of average final compensation 
(average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. The system also 
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer's total payroll for all employees was $868,189. 
Total covered payroll was $258,472. Covered payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Town of 
Homer to active employees covered by the Plan. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, 7722 Office Park Boulevard, Suite 200, 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 929-7411, or by visiting the System's website 
www.lampers.org. 

Contributions 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the actual contribution rate was 31.75% for January through June 
and 30.75% for July through December, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. In accordance with state statute, the 
System receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additional sources of income are 
used as employer contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are 
not considered special funding situations. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

Members are required by state statute to contribute 10.00% of their annual covered salary. The 
contributions are deducted from the employee's wages or salary and remitted by the Town of Homer to the 
System monthly. The Town of Homer's contributions to the System for the year ending December 31, 
2017 were $80,794. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2017, the Employer reported a liability of $948,002 for its proportionate share of the Net 
Pension Liability. The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The Town of Homer's proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on a projection of the Police 
Jury's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the Town's proportion was 0.108586%, 
which was an increase of 0.032727% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer recognized pension expense of $135,927 plus 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions, which was ($39,593). Total pension expense for the Town of 
Homer for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $96,334. 

At December 31, 2017, the Town of Homer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 

$6,2017 $7,287 

Changes in assumption 67,456 -
Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 

41,500 

Changes in employer's portion 
of beginning net pension 
liability 

240,796 

Differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate 
share of employer contributions 
Subsequent measurement 
contributions 

39,090 -

Total $395,049 $7,287 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

The $39,090 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Town of 
Homer contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of Net Pension 
Liability in the year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended December 31: 
2018 $96,941 
2019 96,941 
2020 96,941 
2021 96,941 

A ctuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as of 
June 30. 2017 as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2017 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return 7.325%, net of investment expense 
Inflation rate 2.700% 
Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar 

Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables projected to 2029 
by Scale AA (set back 1 year for females) for 
healthy annuitants and beneficiaries. 
RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table set back 5 years for 
males and set back 3 years for females for disabled 
annuitants. 
RP-2000 Employee Table set back 4 years for 
males and 3 years for females for active members. 

Projected salary increases Years of service Salary growth rate 
1-2 9.75% 
3-23 4.75% 
Over 23 4.25% 

Expected remaining service lives 4 years 
Cost-of-Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is 

based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes previously granted cost-of-
living increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed by the prior actuary 
on plan data for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014, and review of similar law enforcement 
mortality. The data was assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to produce 
current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the 
estimated duration of the System's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were 
compared to those produced by using a set-back of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated 
that the tables used would produce liability values approximating the appropriate generational mortality 
tables. The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included in 
the System's target allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target 
Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Equity 53% 3.66% 
Fixed income 21% 0.52% 
Alternatives 20% 1.11% 
Other 6% 0.16% 
Totals 100% 5.44% 

Inflation 2.75% 
Expected arithmetic nominal 
return 

8.19% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.325%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's 
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Town of Homer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the Town of Homer's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.325%, as well as what the Town of Homer's proportionate share of the net 
pension hability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower 
(6.325%) or one percentage-point higher (8.325%) than the current rate: 

1.0% 
Decrease 
(6.325%) 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(7.325%) 

1.0% 
Increase 
(8.325%) 

Employer's proportionate 
share of net pension liability 

$1,309,756 $948,002 $644,516 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

These financial statements do not include a payable to the pension plan. 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued Municipal 
Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Audit Report at www.lampers.org. 

NOTE 9 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS 

Certain enq)loyees in the Town's police department receive supplemental pay from the state of Louisiana. 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, the Town has recorded revenues and expenditures for these 
payments in the General Fund. Revenues under this arrangement totaled $38,000. The related expenditures 
of $38,000 are included in expenditures in the Police Fund. 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

At December 31, 2017, the Town had several contracts in progress that are funded at least in part by grant 
funds. Total contracts, expenditures to date, and contract balances remaining are $5,532,116, $4,702,823, 
and $829,293, respectively. 

At December 31, 2017, the Town was not involved in any litigation. Subsequent to year end, the Town 
became involved in a case. Counsel for the Town estimates that the Town's potential exposure would be 
limited to $15,000, the deductible on its insurance pohcy. 
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial 
insurance purchased from independent third parties. 

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 29, 2018, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be released. 

As described in Note 10, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, the Town became involved in 
litigation in June 2018. 

NOTE 13 - STEWARDSHIP 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, for the sum of expenditures and other uses, actual amounts 
exceeded budgeted amounts in the following funds: 

Fund 
Original Final 
Budget Budget 

General $492,096 $ 522,636 
Industrial Development 55,550 56,940 

Actual 

$ 542,900 
74.731 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

$ (20,264) 
(17,791) 

NOTE 14 - ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
GASB has issued the following statements: 

Issued in June of 2015, GASB Statement 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
than Pension Plans, and GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other than Pensions, aim to improve accounting and financial reporting for OPEB, resulting from 
a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards. The requirements of these Statements 
will improve financial reporting through enhanced note disclosures and schedules of RSI that will be 
presented by OPEB plans. These Statements establish standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures. GASB 74 is effective for years 
beginning after May 26, 2016, and GASB 75 is effective for years beginning after June 15, 2017. The 
Town is not impacted by the provisions of this Statement. 

GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units—an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 14, was issued in January 2016. This Statement amends the blending requirements for the 
financial statement presentation of component units of all state and local governments. The additional 
criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the 
primary government is the sole corporate member. The additional criterion does not apply to component 
units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to the provisions of Statement No. 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. Earlier application is encouraged. This statement does not 
affect the Town's financial statements. 
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NOTE 14 - ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, was issued in March 2016. This 
Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest 
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. 
Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests 
in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the government controls the 
present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a government recognize 
revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period. The requirements of this Statement 
are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and should be applied 
retroactively. Earlier application is encouraged. This statement does not affect the Town's financial 
statements. 

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, 
was issued in March 2016. This Statement clarifies that a deviation, as the term is used in Actuarial 
Standards of Practice issued by the Actuarial Standards Board, from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard 
of Practice is not considered to be in conformity with the requirements of Statement 67, Statement 68, or 
Statement 73 for the selection of assumptions used in determining the total pension liability and related 
measures. This Statement clarifies that payments that are made by an employer to satisfy contribution 
requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements should 
be classified as plan member contributions for purposes of Statement 67 and as employee contributions for 
purposes of Statement 68. It also requires that an employer's expense and expenditures for those amounts 
be recognized in the period for which the contribution is assessed and classified in the same manner as the 
employer classifies similar compensation other than pensions (for example, as salaries and wages or as 
fringe benefits). The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2016, except for the requirements of this Statement for the selection of assumptions in a circumstance 
in which an employer's pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer's most recent 
fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions are effective for that 
employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after 
June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. This statement will not have a significant effect on the 
Town's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, was issued in November 2016. This 
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An 
ARC is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A 
government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible 
capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is 
encouraged. This statement is not expected to affect the Town's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, was issued in January 2017. The objective of this Statement 
is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial 
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. This 
statement is not expected to affect the Town's financial statements. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

NOTE 14 - ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, was issued in March 2017. The objective of this Statement is to 
address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB 
Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component 
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other 
postemployment benefits [OPEB]). The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. This statement is not expected to have a 
significant impact on the Town's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, was issued in May 2017. The primary 
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance 
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired 
with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an 
irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and 
financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for 
debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. This statement is not expected to affect 
the Town's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued in June 2017. The objective of this Statement is to better meet 
the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by 
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements, was issued in April 2018. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the 
information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct 
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when 
disclosing information related to debt. This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to 
financial statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that 
may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the 
contractual obligation is established. This Statement requires that additional essential information related to 
debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as 
collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with 
finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and 
significant subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement 
also requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct borrowings and direct 
placements of debt separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance 

with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 655,600 $ 658,930 $ 656,320 $ (2,610) 
Licenses and permits 60,990 60,400 63,189 2,789 
Intergovernmental revenues - 3,500 3,482 (18) 
Charges for services 5,000 1,000 24,258 23,258 
Lease income 4,000 4,000 4,250 250 
Interest earned 500 4,000 4,188 188 
Other revenues 19,535 78,655 80,675 2,020 

T otal revenues 745,625 810,485 836,362 25,877 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government: 
Finance and administrative 251,426 245,955 243,814 (2,141) 
Legislative 24,000 23,200 23,200 -
Elections 1,500 1,500 - (1,500) 
Other general government 200,870 224,698 222,310 (2,388) 

Public safety - - 26,327 26,327 
Health and welfare 14,100 15,283 15,223 (60) 
Culture and recreation 200 12,000 12,026 26 

T otal expenditures 492,096 522,636 542,900 20,264 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
e^enditures 253,529 287,849 293,462 5,613 

Other sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 4,000 10,230 10,231 1 
Operating transfers out (259,000) (377,555) (354,727) 22,828 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - 318,326 318,326 -

Total other sources (uses) (255,000) oo
 

(26,170) 22,829 

Net change in fund balance (1,471) 238,850 267,292 28,442 
Fund balance, beginning of year 393,630 187,015 199,408 12,393 
Fund balance, end of year $ 392,159 $ 425,865 $ 466,700 $ 40,835 

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - STREET FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance 

with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 336,900 $ 336,900 $ 338,048 $ 1,148 
Intergovernmental revenues 6,660 6,660 9,990 3,330 
Charges for services 2,000 - - -
Interest earned 300 470 470 -
Other revenues - 1,000 1,060 60 

T otal revenues 345,860 345,030 349,568 4,538 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Highways and stteets 291,268 282,053 279,709 (2,344) 
Health and welfare 9,000 7,500 6,700 (800) 

Capital outlay 30,000 900 - (900) 
T otal expenditures 330,268 290,453 286,409 (4,044) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 15,592 54,577 63,159 8,582 

Other sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in - 9,055 9,055 -

Net change in fund balance 15,592 63,632 72,214 8,582 
Fund balance at beginning of year 15,301 35,427 35,427 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 30,893 $ 99,059 $ 107,641 $ 8,582 

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance 

with 
Original Einal Actual Einal Budget 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenues $ 13,000 $ 28,850 $ 31,103 $ 2,253 

Lease income 1,800 900 900 -

Interest earned 500 2,000 1,975 (25) 
Other revenues - (5,880) (5,880) -

Total revenues 15,300 25,870 28,098 2,228 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Economic development 55,550 56,940 74,731 17,791 
Capital outlay - 16,220 2,250 (13,970) 

T otal expenditures 55,550 73,160 76,981 3,821 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (40,250) (47,290) (48,883) (1,593) 

Net change in fund balances (40,250) (47,290) (48,883) (1,593) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 170,796 142,252 142,252 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 130,546 $ 94,962 $ 93,369 $ (1,593) 

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POLICE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN EUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance 

with 
Original Einal Actual Einal Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 258,900 $ 258,900 $ 268,257 $ 9,357 
Intergovernmental revenues 54,000 54,000 38,000 (16,000) 
Charges for services 7,850 4,765 9,740 4,975 
Fines 78,000 73,000 71,779 (1,221) 
Interest earned 100 200 193 (7) 
Other revenues 3,100 1,800 1,667 (133) 

Total revenues 401,950 392,665 389,636 (3,029) 

Expenditures: 
Current 

Public safety: 
Police Departinent 724,677 734,906 756,993 22,087 

Capital outlay 70,000 60,000 25,457 (34,543) 
Total expenditures 794,677 794,906 782,450 (12,456) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (392,727) (402,241) (392,814) 9,427 

Other sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 359,000 382,000 356,672 (25,328) 

Net change in fund balance (33,727) (20,241) (36,142) (15,901) 
Fund balance - beginning of year 56,444 20,897 20,897 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 22,717 $ 656 $ (15,245) $ (15,901) 

Note: This schedule is prepared on the modified accrual basis. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Employer's 
proportion 
of the net 
pension 
liability 

Employer's 
proportionate 
share of the 
net pension 

Employer's 
covered 

employee 
(asset) liability (asset) payroll 

Employer's 
proportionate share 
of the net pension 

liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its 

covered employee 
payroll 

Plan fiduciary net 
pension as a 

percentage of the 
total pension 

liabili^ 
MERS: 

2015 
2016 
2017 

0.12% $ 
0.11% $ 
0.09% $ 

41h 
447, 
395. 

204,808 
195,185 
171.461 

201.16% 
229.45% 
230.96% 

66.18% 
62.11% 
62.49% 

MPERS: 

2015 0.07% $ 514,574 $ 203,239 253.19% 
2016 0.08% $ 711,013 $ 200,023 355.47% 
2017 0.11% $ 948,002 $ 259,984 364.64% 

70.73% 
66.04% 
70.08% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Conttactually 
required 

contribution 

Contributions 
in relation to 
contractually 

required 
contribution 

Conttibution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Employer's 
covered 

employee 
payroll 

Contributions 
as a 

percentage of 
covered 

employee 
payroll 

MERS: 

2015 $ 39,508.00 
2016 $ 37,727.00 
2017 $ 41,537.78 

$ 39,508.00 
$ 37,727.00 
$ 41,537.78 

$ 200,041.00 
$ 178,288.00 
$ 174,909.26 

19.75% 
21.16% 
23.75% 

MPERS: 

2015 $ 59,826.00 
2016 $ 74,355.00 
2017 $ 80,794.32 

$ 59,826.00 
$ 74,355.00 
$ 80.794.32 

$ 181,321.00 
$ 237,491.00 
$ 258,472.21 

32. 
31.31% 
31.26% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
AS OF December 31,2017 

Fires Recreation Contingency Tourism 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ' 
Receivables, net 

e 143,842 
11,440 

$ 48,836 
15,578 

$ 450 
4,866 

$ 441 $ 193,569 
31,884 

TOTAL ASSETS J e 155,282 $ 64,414 $ 5,316 $ 441 $ 225,453 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable ' e 203 $ $ $ $ 203 

T otal liabilities 203 _ _ _ 203 

Fund balances: 
Restricted fund balances 155,079 64,414 5,316 441 225,250 

T otal fund balances 155,079 64,414 5,316 441 225,250 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES J e 155,282 $ 64,414 $ 5,316 $ 441 $ 225,453 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL EUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OE REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN EUND BALANCES 

Total 

Eire Recreation Contingency Tourism 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Eunds 
Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Sales and use 
Other taxes, penalties and interest 

Inteigovemmental: 
State funds: 

Intergovernmental - state funds - fire insurance rebate 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Other revenues 

$ 98,306 

25,000 
60 

1,533 

$ 146,496 

512 
8,215 

$ 45,399 

81 

$ 
18,782 

50 

$ 290,201 
18,782 

25,000 
60 

2,176 
8,215 

Total revenues 124,899 155,223 45,480 18,832 344,434 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public safety - police department: 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 

Capital outlay 

94,927 

21,010 

128,910 

9,635 

10,000 
51,376 

94,927 
138,910 
51,376 
30,645 

Total e>qienditures 115,937 138,545 10,000 51,376 315,858 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) e>qienditures 8,962 16,678 35,480 (32,544) 28,576 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Sale of capital assets 4,200 

-
(40,076) 

18,845 18,845 
(40,076) 

4,200 
Total other financing sources and uses 4,200 - (40,076) 18,845 (17,031) 

Net change in fund balances 
Fund balances at beginning of year 

13,162 
141,917 

16,678 
47,736 

(4,596) 
9,912 

(13,699) 
14,140 

11,545 
213,705 

Fund balances at end of year $ 155,079 $ 64,414 $ 5,316 $ 441 $ 225,250 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION TO MAYOR AND BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Roy Lewis, Mayor $ 48,000 
Willie Curry 600 
Retiia Curry 2,000 
Alonzo Mitchell 2,000 
Bobby Bums 3,400 
Ray Jiles 1,200 
Keldron Johnston 4,800 
Brandon Rich 4,800 
Susan Herring 2,400 
Clifton Mozeke 2.000 

TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, REIMBURSEMENTS 
AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO OR ON BEHALF OF AGENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Roy Lewis, Mayor: 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
55 

Total $ 71,200 

Salary $48,000 
Payroll Taxes 3,672 
Insurance 7,370 
Travel 408 
Registration Fees 345 
Conference Travel 2,534 

Total $62,329 



OTHER REPORTS 
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BOSCH & 
STATHAM 

:ounLants 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordmce with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Roy Lewis, Mayor 
and Honorable Members of the Board of Selectmen 
Town of Homer 
Homer, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of Town of Homer, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Homer, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Homer, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town of Homer, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town of Homer, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal conti"ol that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be a material weakness 
(2017-002). 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
107B West Alabama Avenue, Ruston, Louisiana 71270 • Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



Town of Homer 
Homer, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Con^liance and Other Matters 

December 31, 2017 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Homer, Louisiana's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on cong)liance with those provisions was not an objective of oiu: audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 
2017-001. 

Town of Homer's Response to Findings 

The Town of Homer, Louisiana's responses to the finchngs identified in our audit are described in the 
acconq)anying schedule of findings and responses. The Town of Homer, Louisiana's responses were 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Although the 
intended use of this report may be limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, it is issued by 
the Legislative Auditor as a pubhc document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
June 29, 2018 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on whether the basic financial 
statements of the Town of Homer were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

2. One material weakness is reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal 
Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

3. One instance of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of 
Homer, which are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2017-001 Maintenance of the Minute and Ordinance Books 

First Reported 
2016 

Type 

Noncompliance with Charter 

Criteria 
Section 11 of the Town of Homer's Charter states, "It shall be the duty of the clerk to record in a 
well bound book all the proceedings, bylaws, ordinances and police regulations adopted by the 
mayor and selectmen, and to cause the same to be promulgated by publication in the newspapers 
of the town, and that no bylaw, ordinance or police regulation shall have effect until it shall have 
been so published for ten (10) days." 

Condition 
During the audit of the 2016 fiscal year, we noted that the ordinances adopting the 2016 and 2017 
budgets were not filed in the ordinance book. The ordinances had to be reprinted and resigned. 
We also noted that the budgets covered by the ordinances were not attached to the ordinances. 

During the audit of the 2017 fiscal year, we noted that the 2018 budget ordinance was not in the 
ordinance book. 

Cause 
The omission appears to be an oversight. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Effect 
The Town is not in compliance with its charter. Official records could be lost if not properly 
retained. 

Recommendation 
The Clerk files copies of minutes and documents in a filing cabinet. We recommend that the only 
official files be the minute book and the ordinance book where documents should be directly 
filed. We recommend that the Town Clerk prepare written policies and procedures to address the 
procedures for filing documents in the Town's official minute book and ordinance book. The 
Town Clerk should obtain the Mayor's approval for the policies and procedures. Once the written 
policies and procedures are approved, they should be implemented. In the interim period, we 
recommend that the Town Clerk review the Ordinance Book and the Minute Book to ensure that 
they are complete. 

Management's Response 
We will implement the auditor's recommendation. 

2017-002 Internal Control over Bank Reconciliations 

First Reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Criteria 
Bank reconciliations are to be prepared monthly after all activity has been posted to the 
general ledger. 

Condition 
Significant transactions were posted in the general ledger after the bank reconciliations 
were prepared. 

Cause 
Bank reconciliations are typically prepared on the first day of the month following the 
bank statement period. The general ledger has typically not been posted completely. 

Effect 
Bank reconciliations do not agree to general ledgers. Cash balances could be incorrect. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management evaluate the current policies and procedures to ensure 
that procedures prevent differences and errors. 

Management's Response 
We will implement the auditor's recommendation. 
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TOWN OF HOMER 
HOMER, LOUISIANA 

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Fiscal Year 
Finding 
Initially 

Ref. No. Occurred 

Description 
of 

Finding 

Corrective 
Action Taken 

Planned Corrective 
Action/Partial 

Corrective 
Yes, No, Partially Action Taken 

2016-001 2014 Town Financial Statements Were Not Filed 
in a Timely Manner 

Yes 

2016-002 2016 Failure to Properly Maintain the Ordinance 
Book 

No See 2017-001 

M2016-001 2016 Policies and Procedures in Recording Police 
Tickets Could be Improved 

Yes 
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Town Clerk 
Lori Kirkpatrick 

June 29, 2018 

TOWN OF HOMER 
Danny *Roy' Lewis, Mayor 

400 East Main 
Homer, LA 71040 

(318)927-3555 Fax (318) 927-3399 

Town Attorney 
Daniel Bays 

Bosch & Statham, LLC 
P.O. Box 2377 
Ruston, LA 71273-2377 

In connection with your engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures to certain control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs), for the fiscal period 
January 1. 2017 through December 31. 2017. we confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following 
representations made to you during your engagement. 

1. We are responsible for the C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, including written policies and procedures; 
board or finance committee; bank reconciliations; collections; disbursements; credit/debit/fuel/purchasing 
cards; travel and expense reimbursement; contracts; payroll and personnel; ethics; debt service; and other 
areas {should be customized by entity, as applicabie). 

Yes No • 

2. For the fiscal period January 1. 2017 throueh December 3J. 2017. the C/C areas were administered in 
accordance with the best practice criteria presented in the SAUPs. 

Yes ^ No • 

3. We are responsible for selecting the criteria and procedures and for determining that such criteria and 
procedures are appropriate for our purposes. 

Yes^El^ No • 

4. We have disclosed to you all known matters contradicting the results of the procedures performed in C/C 
areas. 

Yes-0^ No • 

5. We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory agencies, internal auditors, other 
independent practitioners or consultants, and others affecting the C/C areas, including communications 
received between December 31. 2017. and June 28. 2018. 

Yes^d No • 

6. We have provided you with access to all records that we believe are relevant to the C/C areas and the 
agreed-upon procedures. 

Yes d No • 

Council Members: Alamo Mitchell-District I Rev. Ray Jiles-District II Keldron Johnston-District III 
Brandon Rich, Mayor Pro Tern-District IV Clifton Mozeke-District V 

"This Institution Is An Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider" 

Last Updated: August 17, 2017 



7. We represent that the listing of bank accounts provided to you is complete. 

Yes ^ No • 

8. We represent that the listing of cash/check/money order (cash) collection locations provided to you is 
complete. 

Yes -ET No • 

9. We represent that the listing of entity disbiu^ements or the general ledger population of entity 
disbursements provided to you is complete. 

Yes Q No • 

10. We represent that the listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards), 
including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards, provided 
to you is complete. 

Yes^ No • 

11. We represent that the listing of all travel and related expense reimbursements, by person, during the fiscal 
period or the general ledger population of travel and related expense reimbursements provided to you is 
complete. 

Yes 0^No • 

12. We represent that the listing of all contracts in effect during the fiscal period or the general ledger 
population of contract payments provided to you is complete. 

Yes -ZT No • 

13. We represent that the listing of employees (and elected officials, if applicable) with their related salaries 
provided to you is complete. 

Yes 0^ No • 

14. We represent that the listing of employees (and elected officials, if applicable) that terminated during the 
fiscal period provided to you is complete. 

YesZf^ No • 

15. We have disclosed to you [list other matters as you have deemed appropriate]. 

Yes Zf^o • 

16. We have responded fully to all inquiries made by you during the engagement. 

Yes No • •d^N 

17. We are not aware of any events that have occurred subsequent to December 31. 2017. that would require 
adjustment to or modification of the results of the agreed-upon procedures. 

YtsU No O 

Last Updated: August 17, 2017 



The previous responses have been made to the best of our belief and knowledge. 

Date ^ Signature 

Title Mayors 

Signature Date '^S 

Title TowtTClerk 

Last Updated: August 17,2017 



BOSCH & 
STATHAM 

Accountants 

Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Town of Homer 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Town of Homer 
(Entity) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period January 1,2017 
through December 31, 2017. The Entity's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any 
other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain the entity's written policies and procedures and report whether those written policies and 
procedures address each of the following financial/business functions (or report that the entity does 
not have any written policies and procedures), as applicable: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 

The^polCc^ Cnduded^the^ refere^uxd/fu^rxjcWyvv^. 

Ej6cejE>Cu>n^" 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

The^polCc^ dld^not C^ichtde/(1), (2)j or (3). 

E)cc€ptCon&': See^ahove^ 

Mctno^cmenfyKcijtxmAe^" Se^Mct'V\j(x^emje^yCorrectO\/e/ActCoY\/Pla^ 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

The^poUcy dC^CLt&ied/Ovd^ 1h^re^Ce\vi^i^ofdl&bt^rhem,er\ty. 

E)cceptCon&': See/above/. 

Ma^nx^L^e^nervtfyKe^pon&e/: See/Mci/nag€4ne^\XfyCorrective/ActCOY\/Pla^ 
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d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits 

T%e^To\v\a/doe^notha^e^H^x^a^pCflCcy. 

'E)cceptioi^: See^cibove/. 

Mci^na^^e^yieyiXfylZe^onie/: See^Mciyia^eme4%tfyC<>rrecti\/e/ActC(>y\/Plcm/ 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

the/ policy hrCefly dlicu^iiey leaver ccnd/ overtime/, the/ dl4cu&iloy\/ Cy not 
Cw depth/ cuxd/ cLoey not Cnclude/ payroll/ proce^^Cng/ or reviewing/ cund/ 
ccppro\/Ong/t(me/ ayul/ attendance/ recordy. 

'E)cceptiony: See/ohove/. 

Mcina.gementfy'Rcyponie/: See/ManagementfyCorrectC\/e/ActCon/plcLn/ 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 

the/ poUcy dlicu^&iey the/ ^e^^Ccey recftAtrCng/ written/ contracty and/ the/ 
necei^ary legal/ review, hut doey not define/ the/ ^tandewd/ termy and/ 
condltCony approval/proce^, or the/monltorCng/proceiy. 

C)cceptCony: See/ohove/. 

Mcinctgementfy'Reiponie/: See/ManagementfyCorreetC\/e/ActCon/plcin' 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers, and (5) monitoring card usage 

the/ poUcy dl&cu^^ey (l) how the/ card/y are/ to- he/ controlled/ hut doey 
not dl&cu&y (2) allowalyle/ huMne&y u/^ey, (3) documentcitCon 
requtrementy, (^) required/approvers or (5) morUtorCng/card/u^age/. 

CyeeptCony: See/oho^e/. 

Mana.gementfy'Reqyonie/: See/ManagementfyCorrectO^e/ActConplcin' 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers 

the/ policy di&ca&^ey (l) allowalyle/ ocpemey, (3) docunientatCon 
requlrementy, and/ (^) required/ appro^ery hut doey not dlicu^y (2) 
dollar threiholdyhy category of&tpen^. 

C)cceptCony: See/oho^e/. 

ManagementfyReipome/: See/Mana.gementfyCorrectC\/e/ActCoy\/Plan/ 
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i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest 
through signature verification that they have read the entity's ethics policy. Note: Ethics 
requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

Tl\e^To\vy\/doe^noth(^e^iuch/ci/polCcy. 

E)cc€ptCoYiy: See^cibove< 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt 
reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

7lh^ Ticnvn/Kiot'Kove^ Auc^v a/p(>l«xy. 

E)cceptCony: See^ahove< 

Se€^Mciyu^^eme^yCorre<:tC^i/e/Actic>y\/plcm/ 

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 

2. Obtain and review the board/committee minutes for the fiscal period, and: 

a) Report whether the managing board met (with a quorum) at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, or odier equivalent document. 

VUe/ ohtaCned/ cn4\d/ reviewed/ mCnutei' for the/ Doard/. M)e/ did/ not 
iclentf^ c<>mmCC£ee^. TlKe'Baa^d/metra/frleo^mxmtihiy. 

E)cceptCon^: hJone/ 

b) Report whether the minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the 
General Fund and any additional hinds identified as major hinds in the entity's prior audit 
(GAAP-basis). 

The/ vnCntAt&y did/ not reference/ a/ monthly hud-^et-to^-aetucd/ 
compcwUon/. However, we^ injected/ the/ firicLnclcd/ report for January 
2018. It CncUuiey o/ conVparCion' of actucd/ remo/inuogp budget ay 
opposed/ to- budget to actual/ variance^ Additionally, we/ noted/ that 
the/bud^etyc^e/not ertered/into the/cLccountlng/iyitem/ioftM^cire/. M)e/ 
recommend/ that: mona-^efnentr input the/ budgety into the/ 
CLCcounting/ software/to ericible/budget to CLctual/comparUonycUrcir\y 
date/. 

E)cceptiony: See/aho^/e/. 

Mionagementfy'Re^onie/: See/ mono^emenC'i'corrective/actton/plan/. 
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> If the budget-to-actual comparisons show that management was deficit spending during the 
fiscal period, report whether there is a formal/written plan to eliminate the deficit spending 
for those entities with a fund balance deficit. If there is a formahwritten plan, report whether 
the meeting minutes for at least one board meeting during the fiscal period reflect that the 
board is monitoring the plan. 

We^ were^ notr able^ to- complete/ thiy procedure/ due/ to- the/ 
comparUony not being/ presented/. However, we' noted/ no- ^uch/ 
defCcltyper dne/ occotmCtn^ recordy. 

c) Report whether the minutes referenced or included non-budgetary financial information (e.g. 
approval of contracts and disbursements) for at least one meeting during the fiscal period. 

The/ mCnutey did/ reference/ nonr^budgetcuy CnfbrmatCon/ in/ of leo^t" 
one/meeting/. 

E)ccept(ony: hJone/ 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accoimts from management and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. 

We/obtained/a/lC&t(ng/and/noted/the/list way incomplete/. 

^KceptCony: See/dbove/. 

4. Using the listing provided by management, select all the entity's bank accounts (if five accounts or 
less) or one-third of the bank accounts on a three-year rotating basis (if more than 5 accounts). If 
there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to follow the rotation established 
by the previous practitioner. Note: School Board activity fund accounts may be excluded from 
selection if they are otherwise addressed in a separate audit or A UP engagement. For each of the 
bank accounts selected, obtain bank statements and reconciliations for all months in the fiscal period 
and report whether: 

We/ s,elected/ heNen of the/ rJinete^en/ accounty for testing/ and obtained 
barJo ̂ tatem^entyand/ re<x>ncdiationy 
a) Bank reconciliations have been prepared; 

Bank/ re<x>ncdCat(onywere/prepcLredfor ad monthy. 
U)ioept(ony: None/ 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management or a board member (with no 
involvement in the transactions associated with the bank account) has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation; and 
None/ofd^e/barJore<xmjcdiationyfho\v evidence/of review. 
U)ccept(ony: See/above/. 
Mana^ementfyReipcmife^. See/ managementfycorrectCNe/actCon/plan/. 
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c) If applicable, management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items 
that have been outstanding for more than 6 months as of the end of the fiscal period. 
5t^tCBefv hciv\k/ re<x>nc4ZCcUi(>Yiy included/ ^tvde/ thcUr were/ more/ 
d^or\/hO)omjOYvdiy6ld/. M)e/noted/noe^/icience/of-rej,eurch/. 
^)cc€pt(ony: See/above/ 
Hana^emertfyReiipom^. See/ mx^rx^^erierXfycorreetX^/e/octCon/plan/. 

Collections 

5. Obtain a listing of cash/check/money order (cash) collection locations and management's 
representation that the hsting is complete. 

We^ obtained/ the/ liitin^ of caih/ coUeotCon/ location^ and/ mana^em&ntfy 
repreientatConthatthe/ listing iy complete/. 

EKceptCony: Mone/ 

6. Using the listing provided by management, select all the entity's cash collection locations (if five 
locations or less) or one-third of the collection locations on a three-year rotating basis (if more than 5 
locations). If there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to follow the 
rotation established by the previous practitioner. Note: School Board activity funds may be excluded 
from selection if they are otherwise addressed in a separate audit or AUP engagement. For each 
cash collection location selected: 

the/ erttty hay ovdy two- cad^ coUectCon locatCony: town hall/ and/ the/ 
halLparh conce^^ion/^tand/. 

a) Obtain existing written documentation (e.g. insurance policy, policy manual, job description) and 
report whether each person responsible for collecting cash is (1) bonded, (2) not responsible for 
depositing the cash in the bank, recording the related transaction, or reconciling the related bank 
account (report if there are con^ensating controls performed by an outside party), and (3) not 
required to share the same cash register or chrawer with another employee. 

We/requested/bondingcertCfCcateyhutdid/notreceiNe/lhem/. the/Town 
hay two- cashiery at: town hall/ dxatr collect ibe/ wiojority of paymenty. 
The/ cashiery do- not deposit cashi record/ transactCony in the/ 
accounting/ iystemi or reconcile/ the/ bank/ account, the/ cashiery 
maintainsepcu'cite/ca^drciwery. Vuring/ihe/yeaTj for ashortperCotii 
an enqfloyee/Operated/a concession stand/at the/baseball pccrh. that 
employee/ ylbmttted/ coUectCony to- town hall for deposit and/ 
recording/. 

E)icept(ony: See/above/. 

McuvagemenXfyllespon&e/: See/ managementfycorrective/actConplan/. 
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b) Obtain existing written documentation (e.g. sequentially numbered receipts, system report, 
reconciliation worksheets, policy manual) and report whether the entity has a formal process to 
reconcile cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source 
and/or agency fund additions, by a person who is not responsible for cash collections in the cash 
collection location selected. 

VUe/ noted/ no- iudh/poUcy. 

^)u:eptCony: See/dbove/. 

Mci/nci^e^yi&ntfy'R&iponie/: See/ corrective/actton/plcini 

c) Select the highest (dollar) week of cash collections from the general ledger or other accounting 
records during the fiscal period and: 

^^)e/ ohtcUned/ depo^ reporty from/ the/ towny aceou/ntCng^ iy^tem/ cLvid/ 
c<dxxdcUed/lhe/KCghe^week/. 

Using entity collection documentation, deposit slips, and bank statements, trace daily collections 
to the deposit date on the corresponding bank statement and report whether the deposits were 
made within one day of collection. If deposits were not made within one day of collection, report 
the number of days from receipt to deposit for each day at each collection location. 

VUe' obtained/ coUectCon/ d/>cume4XtvUloni including^ d&pohit d/Cpy CM\d/ 
receipt dcvt&y cLnd/ traced/ each/ depo^ to- the/ bav\k/ statement. There/ 
were/563 coUectU>ns/recelpty Uv 27 deposlty We/noted/ele^/evx/recelpty 
were/not deposited/wCthlvy one/day ofcoUectCotv. 

^)iceptCony: See/ohoye/. 

Mcir\agementfy1leSponse/: See/ marci^emertfycorrectOi/e/actCon/plaAV. 

> Using sequentially numbered receipts, system reports, or other related collection 
documentation, verify that daily cash collections are completely supported by documentation 
and report any exceptions. 

We/ tcsed/ seqtAertCcdly numbered/ receCpty and/ system/ reporty to-
verify ihatr daCly cash/ coUectCony are/ completely sapported/ by 
documentation/. 

ExceptCony: See/ahove/. 

Mana^ementfy Ke^onse/i See/ mana^ementfy corrective/ actCon/ 
plan/ 
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7. Obtain existing written documentation (e.g. policy manual, written procedure) and report whether the 
entity has a process specifically defined (identified as such by the entity) to determine completeness 
of all collections, including electronic transfers, for each revenue source and agency hind additions 
(e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency hind forfeiture monies 
confirmation) by a person who is not responsible for collections. 

We^ noted/ no- such/polCcy. 

E)cceptCony See/above/. 

MoA^x^gemei^yKe^onAe': See/ may\x^^emev\Xfycorre<:ti^e/action/plan/. 

Disbursements — General (excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-Cardpurchases or payments) 

8. Obtain a listing of entity disbiursements from management or, alternately, obtain the general ledger 
and sort/filter for entity disbursements. Obtain management's representation that the listing or 
general ledger population is complete. 

M)e/ obtained/ o/ copy of dxe/ QulckSoohy fCLey avid/ e/fiporVedu check/ detiaCU'. 
We/obtained/mcu\/a^€vnevvt^yrepreientattovvlhat:lhe/lC&tlng^Cy complete/ 

^X'CeptCon&i Mone/ 

8. Using the disbursement population from #8 above, randomly select 25 disbursements (or randomly 
select disbursements constituting at least one-third of the dollar disbursement population if the entity 
had less than 25 fransactions during the fiscal period), excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-
card purchases or payments. Obtain supporting documentation (e.g. purchase requisitions, system 
screens/logs) for each transaction and report whether the supporting documentation for each 
transaction demonstrated that: 

We/ ^elected/ 25 dldyur^ementy for testing. The/ dyCibttriementy for the/ 
genercd/ fond/ were/ hccpha^cwdly ielected/ hecoytA^e/ ihere/ were/ maviy 
payroU/ cheeky wrCttetv out: of thcUr fund/, making^ ravidom/ ielectCotv 
dlffCcuit. VCibunementy for aXi other fundy were/ ^elected/ u&Cng^ a/ 
random number generator. 

a) Purchases were initiated using a requisition/purchase order system or an equivalent electronic 
system that separates initiation from approval functions in the same manner as a 
requisition/purchase order system. 

The/ towhy purcha'&lng/dXy&buriement pbUcy ytcctey purchuie/ 
requC&ltCony and/ purcha^ ordery are/to- be/ u^ed/ to purcha&ey 
Mo requUltCony are/ u^ed/. Many Vtemy ^elected/ for teytln^ did/ not 
require/ o/ purchase/ order because/ ihey were/ for routine/ monthly 
paymenty, iudh/ ay for phoney and/ copCery. ^Cght out of 25 sample/ 
itemy d^iould/ have/ been yApported/ by a purchase/ order. Oydy 3 out of 
8 had/purchase/ordery. 

'E)cceptiony: See/above/. 

Manoy^ementfy'Reiponse^. See/ managementsy corrective/actionplan. 
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b) Purchase orders, or an electronic equivalent, were approved by a person who did not initiate the 
purchase. 

One^ of threes purcha^ ordery wciy iC^ned/ hy someone/ other thay\/ the^ 
requ&stor. Two-outoflhree^ptArchcL^orderywere^notil^ned/. 

E)u:€ptCony: See/cOoo\e/. 

Mciru^igerier^tfyKeypOYiie/: See/ marx^^emerXfycorreetX^/e/action/plan/. 

c) Payments for purchases were not processed without (1) an approved requisition and/or purchase 
order, or electronic equivalent; a receiving report showing receipt of goods purchased, or 
electronic equivalent; and an approved invoice. 

See/ ahove/ commerty re'geirdCng^ purcha^ ordery and/ reefuX^CtCoviy. 
Three/ otAtr of twervty-fi^e/ cheeky included/ purchuiey ihcct ihould/ hcu/e/ 
heer\/ supported/ hy a/ recelA/in^ report. Two- out of ihree/ dldyur^emevity 
were/ not yApportCng^ hy reeeOi/ing/ d/x>umervtutCoY\/. Alb ttemy were/ 
yxpported/ hy or/ im/oice/ or other proper yxpport. 

'E)ieeptiony: See/dhove/. 

Manageriertfy'Reyponie/: See/ Yy\x;{r\£ig€^yier\ifycorreetbi/e/actiOY\/pla¥\/. 

9. Using entity documentation (e.g. electronic system control documentation, pohcy manual, written 
procedure), report whether the person responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding 
vendors to the entity's purchasing/disbursement system. 

The/ Towvvy polCoCey do- not documervt who- iy re^ondhle/ for proce^^Cng^ 
paymenty. Per CncjuCrCeyj we/Cder\tXfied/lhe/CLceountypaycible/clerhcLythe/ 
person/ who- proce&^&y puymervty. She/ car\/ add/ vendory to- the/ ervtCty'y 
purcha^Cng/dyid>uriemer[t yyjfiem/. 

ExeeptCony: See/dhove/. 

MaruagemervtfyReypome/: See/ managemerXfycorreetOi/e/octCon/plan/. 

10. Using entity documentation (e.g. electronic system control documentation, policy manual, written 
procedure), report whether the persons with signatory authority or who make the final authorization 
for disbursements have no responsibility for initiating or recording purchases. 

cheeky are/ signed/ hy ihe/ Mayor and/ act leuyt one/ hoard/ merbher. 3oard/ 
memhery do- not initiate/ purcha^ey. 

ExeeptCony: None/ 
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11. Inquire of management and observe whether the supply of unused checks is maintained in a locked 
location, with access restricted to those persons that do not have signatory authority and report any 
exceptions. Alternately, if the checks are electronically printed on blank check stock, review entity 
documentation (electronic system control documentation) and report whether the persons with 
signatory authority have system access to print checks. 

We^ CnqvUred/ of wtcwoa.^ement' and/ orb%er\/ed/ idie/ HAppl^ of unused/ chechy 
Civ the/ itcufe/ heUde/ ihe/ treasurerV office/. The/ iofe/ Cy lA^hlocked/ and/ open/ 
dAArCng^ the/ day and/ Cy locked/ cUr vUght. Acce^ to- anu^^ed/ cheeky Cy not 
nece^yxrCly restricted/ to- iho^ who- do- not hca/e/ signatory aAAthorOty, 
iCnc€/lhe/y;ufeC^Ln/an/Open/location/cind/Cynotlocked/atraditCmey. 

ExceptCony: See/aho^/e/. 

ManagemjentfyReypom^: See/ Yviana^emjendycorrectO\/e/act^x>y\/plan/. 

12. If a signature stanq) or signature machine is used, inquire of the signer whether his or her signatiure is 
maintained under his or her control or is used only with the knowledge and consent of the signer. 
Inquire of the signer whether signed checks are likewise maintained under the control of the signer or 
authorized user until mailed. Report any exceptions. 

A ^CgnatiAre/ ^tamp Cy vL&ed/ hy the/ mayor. The/ mayor mcUntainy the/ 
stamp tAnder hCy controU or Ct Cy used/ ovdy with/ hCy knowledge/ and/ 
consent. Per the/mayor, signed/checks ane/returned/to the/treasurer for 
moAJiCng'. 

ExceptCony: hJone/ 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fiiel cards, and P-cards 
(cards), including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the 
cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is conq)lete. 

We/ obtained/ a/ ICstCng^ of aXb actCve^ cardy and/ managementfy 
representatCovvthcUrthe/ ICstCng^ Cy complete/. 

ExceptCony: None/ 

15. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 10 cards (or at least one-third of the cards 
if the entity has less than 10 cards) that were used during the fiscal period, rotating cards each year. If 
there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to follow the rotation estabhshed 
by the previous practitioner. 

Obtain the monthly statements, or combined statements if multiple cards are on one statement, for the 
selected cards. Select the monthly statement or combined statement with the largest dollar activity 
for each card (for a debit card, select the monthly bank statement with the largest dollar amount of 
debit card purchases) and: 

There^ were/ four cardy cm the/ ICst. We/ selected/ two cardy for testing/ We/ 
ohtaXned/ihe/monthly statementy for ihe/selected/card^y. We/selected/the/ 
monthly statement with the/largest doUar actO^Cty for each/card/. 
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a) Report whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of 
certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipahty); these instances should not 
be reported.)] 

there' (4f YIO- evidence^ tKoir the' monthly ^tcUementy and/ HAppovtCng/ 
dxyciunentatCon wa^ revuewec?/ and/ approved/, Ctv writing/, hy iomeone/ 
other than/the/ aathorC^ed/ card/ holder. 

^)cceptCony: See/above/. 

Mana^ementfyReiponife^. See/ may\a.^ementfycorrective/actConplani 

b) Report whether finance charges and/or late fees were assessed on the selected statements. 

We/noted/no-finance/char^e^ and/or late/fee^(^'iie'iied/onthe/ielected/ 
itatementy. 

^)cceptCony: None/ 

16. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #15 above, obtain supporting 
documentation for all transactions for each of the 10 cards selected (i.e. each of the 10 cards should 
have one month of transactions subject to testing). 

a) For each transaction, report whether the transaction is supported by: 

> An original itemized receipt (i.e., identifies precisely what was purchased) 

> Documentation of the business/public purpose. For meal charges, there should also be 
documentation of the individuals participating. 

> Other documentation that may be required by written policy (e.g., purchase order, written 
authorization.) 

tour out of thirty ^elected/ char^ey were/ not yApported/ hy ar\/ orCginab 
itemC^ed/receipt. 

tourteen out of thirty tran&actCony were/ not yxpported/ hy 
documentation of the/ hu&tne^^ubUc/ purpose/, there/ were/ no- meab 
char^e^ ielected/. 

We/ noted/ no-other dx>cumentationreeiuirementy. 

t)cceptiony: See/above/. 

Mcincigenientfy'Reiponie/: See/ mana^gementfycorrective/actConplan. 

b) For each transaction, compare the transaction's detail (nature of purchase, dollar amount of 
purchase, supporting documentation) to the entity's written purchasing/disbursement policies and 
the Louisiana Pubhc Bid Law (i.e. transaction is a large or recurring purchase requiring the 
sohcitation of bids or quotes) and report any exceptions. 

We/notAed/no-trar\4,actionythat:were/yAbjectto-the/puhlic/hid/law. 

tHoeptCony: None/ 
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c) For each transaction, compare the entity's documentation of the business/public purpose to the 
requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Loiusiana Constitution, which prohibits the loan, 
pledge, or donation of funds, credit, property, or things of value, and report any exceptions (e.g. 
cash advances or non-business purchases, regardless whether they are reimbursed). If the nature 
of the transaction precludes or obscures a comparison to the requirements of Article 7, Section 
14, the practitioner should report the transaction as an exception. 

we^c<>yyVpcired/the^e^vUty*ydocAA^ne^\tcUU>Yi/<>fthe^ 
hu>iiyie^^LAhlUyptAyi^(>ie^t(y'lhe^reqtAXyremey\tyofArticle^7j SectCon/l^ of 

LovLi&Canci/ ConstOtutConi which/ prohCbity ihe/ loccm pledge/, or 
donatCoy\/ of ftAA\d/y, oredCt, property, or of value/. We/ noted/ 
ie^/ervoiAtroflhirty trcu^.y^ction^'thut may violate/Article/ 7, Section/ 
of the/ LotU^icuxa/ ConstCtatCon/. The/ tran&actCony included/ ^aley ta^ 
whichlhe/townU'not obligated/to-pay. 

E)u:€ptiony: See/ahove/. 

Mccnx^ige^yientfy'Re^onie/: See/ mx^iyu^gemenXfycorrective/action/plan/. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

17. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and related expense reimbursements, by person, during 
the fiscal period or, altemately, obtain the general ledger and sort/filter for travel reimbursements. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 

We^ obtained/ a/ listing^ of all tra\/el/ ccnd/ related/ e^eme/ relmbur^ementy 
for the/ fU/caX/ period/ CLnd/ ma4\cigementfy representation/ that the/ h^tUng' 
Cy complete/. 

E)cceptiony: hJone/ 

18. Obtain the entity's written policies related to travel and expense reimbursements. Compare the 
amounts in the policies to the per diem and mileage rates established by the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov) and report any amounts that exceed GSA rates. 

We^ obtained/ the/ entity'y written/ polioiey related/ to- trcuitel/ and/ ocpense/ 
relmhunementy. The/ Towny policy ^tatey that the/ LovUsiana/ Tra\/el 
Qalde/ for ^tate/ employees^ appliey. We^ compared/ the/ amounty relmhuned/ 
to-the/rates'estabUd^ied/by <^SA. The/Town/pcUd/mXleuge/and/mealyahove/ 
the/QSA rcites^ in/(dlthree/relmlyur^enienty tested/. 

E)cceptiony: See/ahove/. 

Mccnagementfyllesponse/: See/ meinagementfycorrective/action/plcin/. 

19. Using the listing or general ledger from #17 above, select the three persons who incurred the most 
travel costs during the fiscal period. Obtain the expense reimbursement reports or prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected person, including the supporting documentation, and choose the 
largest travel expense for each person to review in detail. For each of the three travel expenses 
selected; 

We/ieleeted/the/sample/els'recftAlred/. 
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a) Compare expense documentation to written policies and report whether each expense was 
reimbursed or prepaid in accordance with written policy (e.g., rates established for meals, 
mileage, lodging). If the entity does not have written policies, compare to the GSA rates (#18 
above) and report each reimbursement that exceeded those rates. 

^^)e/ compared/ cxpeme/ dx>cu^nev\tvUiov\/ to- written/ polCciey and/ noted/ 
cCU/three/ relmhariementytcstedywere/pcUdy vnore/thavvthe/ ratcy (Avthe/ 
LoaCitana/ Travel/ <^ulde/. 

^}cceptCony: See/dbove/. 

Mono^ement'i'Ke^cm^" See/ m.ona^emenC'A'Correcttve'actton/plan/. 

b) Report whether each expense is supported by: 

> An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. [Note: An 
expense that is reimbursed based on an established per diem amount (e.g., meals) does not 
require a receipt.] 

> Documentation of the business/public purpose (Note: For meal charges, there should also be 
documentation of the individuals participating). 

> Other documentation as may be required by written policy (e.g., authorization for travel, 
conference brochure, certificate of attendance) 

We/ noted/ no- rei^rdyaricvncnty thcUr recfoired/ orCgdAXcd/ CtemC^ed/ 
recetpty hecaa^ the/ Toxuny policy ptwCdey for per dlerv rcUey. The/ 
haUnc&y parpo^e/ wcay documented/ for cCH ihe/ tested/ ctcpemey. We/ 
noted/ no- other dx>cumey\tatCon/ recfoired/ per tow n policy. 

'E)cceptiony: See/cdxA/e/. 

Mana^ementfyRcyponife^. See/ vnana^emenXfycorrectU/e/actCon/plani 

c) Compare the entity's documentation of the business/public purpose to the requirements of Article 
7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which prohibits the loan, pledge, or donation of 
funds, credit, property, or things of value, and report any exceptions (e.g. hotel stays that extend 
beyond conference periods or payment for the travel expenses of a spouse). If the nature of the 
transaction precludes or obscures a comparison to the requirements of Article 7, Section 14, the 
practitioner should report the transaction as an exception. 

We/ noted/ no- otpen&ey tKot appeared/ to- violate/die/ ConstCtutCon/. 

^)ieeptCony: hJone/ 

d) Report whether each expense and related documentation was reviewed and approved, in writing, 
by someone other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

One/ of the/ idiree/ expend relmhur^ementy way for the/ mayor. No- one/ 
el^ ii^ned/ the/ form/, for two- oat of dvree/ retmhuriementyj the/ formy 
were/prOperly re^/iewed/and/appro^/ed/. 

f)cc€ptCony: See/ahove/. 

Mcaicigementfy'Rciponie/: See/ managementsycorrectOi/e/octCon/plan/. 
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Contracts 

20. Obtain a listing of all contracts in effect during the fiscal period or, alternately, obtain the general 
ledger and sort/filter for contract payments. Obtain management's representation that the listing or 
general ledger is complete. 

VUe' obtcUned/ a/ of dW corvtracty On' effect fiiccCb period/ 
ciridy management yrepreiertcitCoyvdx(^lhe^ll^t(M^C^contplete/. 

E)cceptCony: hJone^ 

21. Using the listing above, select the five contract "vendors" that were paid the most money during the 
fiscal period (excluding purchases on state contract and excluding payments to the practitioner). 
Obtain the related contracts and paid invoices and; 

We/ ^elected/ the^ /tve' contract vendory that were/ paid/ the^ most money 
during^ the^ fiitcdb period/ and/ obtained/ the^ related/ contracty and/ paid/ 
Cvwoicey. 

a) Report whether there is a formahwritten contract that supports the services arrangement and the 
amount paid. 

We/ noted/ there^ iy a/ formal/ written/ contract for each contract 
selected/ for testing^, the/ contracty sapport the/ servicey arrangemjent 
cinxt the/(amount paid/. 

E)cceptiony: hJone/ 

b) Compare each contract's detail to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement Code. Report 
whether each contract is subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement Code and: 

> If yes, obtain/compare supporting contract documentation to legal requirements and report 
whether the entity complied with all legal requirements (e.g., solicited quotes or bids, 
advertisement, selected lowest bidder) 

> If no, obtain supporting contract documentation and report whether the entity solicited 
quotes as a best practice. 

hJone/ of the/ contrc^icty selected/ for testing/ were subject to- the 
Loutsicu\aPubUc/3id/ Lcvw or Procurement Code. 

See above comment. 

the entity (lid/not solicit quotey any (>f the contrcicty tested/. 

E)iceptCony: See above. 

Managementfy KeSponse: See managementfy corrective c^LctCon 
plan. 
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c) Report whether the contract was amended. If so, report the scope and dollar amount of the 
amendment and whether the original contract terms contemplated or provided for such an 
amendment. 

hJone/ of the^ contracty ̂ electBd/ for were/ cunended/ during ihe/ 
fUccdperCod. 

^KceptCony: None/ 

d) Select the largest payment from each of the five contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, compare 
the invoice to the contract terms, and report whether the invoice and related payment conq)lied 
with the terms and conditions of the contract. 

We/ ^elected/ the/ payment from/ each/ of dxe/ fO\/e/ corUractJi 
obtained/ the/ HApportCng/ uovotcej and compared/ idie/ Crwoice/ txr the/ 
contract terJ^our oat of paymenty tested/ complied/ with/ the/ 
term^ and conditCony of ihe/contract. 

E)cceptCony: See/above/. 

Mca\agementfy'ReSponse/: See/ mx^ina^enientfycorrective/actCon/plan/. 

e) Obtain/review contract documentation and board minutes and report whether there is 
documentation of board approval, if required by policy or law (e.g. Lawrason Act or Home Rule 
Charter). 

Two- of the/ selected/ contracty were/ approved/ by the/ board/ darCng/the/ 
fCscabyear. Three/ of the/ contracty were/ approved in prior yeary. 

^)cceptiony: None/ 

Payroll and Personnel 

22. Obtain a listing of enq)loyees (and elected officials, if applicable) with their related salaries, and 
obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select five 
employees/officials, obtain their personnel files, and: 

a) Review compensation paid to each employee during the fiscal period and report whether 
payments were made in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the enq)loyment 
contract or pay rate structure. 

We/ obtained the/ listing/, managementfy representation and 
personnebfCieyfor selected employeey. We/ noted no- compensation 
dvatr did not agree/to-pciy rate/change/forvrvy. 

'E)cceptiony: None/ 

b) Review changes made to hourly pay rates/salaries during the fiscal period and report whether 
those changes were approved in writing and in accordance with written policy. 

Tor three/ oat of five/ pay rente/ ediangey, there/ wen^y no- docamented 
approvabofldie/cbangey. 

TKceptiony: None/ 
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23. Obtain attendance and leave records and randomly select one pay period in which leave has been 
taken by at least one employee. Within that pay period, randomly select 25 employees/officials (or 
randomly select one-third of employees/officials if the entity had less than 25 employees during the 
fiscal period), and: 

a) Report whether all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not ehgible to earn 
leave and does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is 
earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily 
attendance and leave.) 

We/ohtcUyied/p(^rcyU/che<:k/re'^C&teryay\d/Cde.y\tCfi£^(^pay perCod/that 
included^le<Vi/e^tvilc&vv We^ielected/ZS e^}^loyee^offici(diy. Three^ofthe^ 
twen^-/tve^ ielected/ were/ coiAncd/ membery thcUr do- ncytr record 
cUtendance^or leave< SC^ofdie/twerXy-ftA/e/^elected/were/iolarCed/cind/ 
dCd/ not maCntuUr/ cm/ citteridcuice/ record/. The/ Town/ trachy teoA/e/ 
I>a/la/nce4'i>vi^cuxxHmCtn^i<>/twcme< Howe^i/er, the/Town/u&eythe/2011 
verUon/ of the/ ^oftAvare/ which/ doey not produce/ reporty of hiytoricdb 
leave' earned/ and/ vued/. There/ Cy only a/ report for the/ carrenC" leaver 
haZance/. Therefore/, we/were/not aZde/to-inspect lea/\/e/recordLy. 

'E)cceptiony: See/ohove/. 

Mcmo.^ement'i'Re^cm^" 5e€'McLna^emen;C'^Cc>rrecCtA/e'?4ctt<>n/pla^ 

b) Report whether there is written documentation that supervisors approved, electronically or in 
writing, the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

Si/titeen/ of ihc/ twenty-ftA/e/ ^elected/ recorded/ attendance/. 5even/ of the/ 
attendance/ recordy included/ a/ yiApersfiyor y approval/ of attendance/, 
of the/ two- employeey lhat tooh leave/, the/ hUpervvyory approval/ way 
not documented/. 

'E)Lceptiony: See/above/. 

Manu^ementfyRapOYue^. 5ee'Mana^^emeti;C'5'Cc)rrecttve'?4ct£on/pla^ 

c) Report whether there is written documentation that the entity maintained written leave records 
(e.g., hours eamed, hours used, and balance available) on those selected enq)loyees/officials that 
eam leave. 

The/Town tracky leave/halancey On/ Oty cLccountCng/ software/. However, 
ihe/ Town ayey the/ 2011 version of ihe/ software/ wKCch/ doey not 
produce/ reporty of hlytorCcab leave/ earned/ and/ uyed/. There/ Cy OY\ly a/ 
report for ihe/ current leave/ balance/. Therefore/, we/ were/ not able/ to-
Cnypect leave/ recordy. 

EfcceptCony: See/above/. 

McvnagementfyKeyponye/: See/h4ana^ementfyCorrect(ve/ActConplan/. 
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24. Obtain from management a list of those employees/officials that terminated during the fiscal period 
and management's representation that the list is conq)lete. If applicable, select the two largest 
termination payments (e.g., vacation, sick, conq)ensatory time) made during the fiscal period and 
obtain the personnel files for the two employees/officials. Report whether the termination payments 
were made in sfrict accordance with policy and/or contract and approved by management. 

We^ obtained/ a ICst of terminated/ &vyiployeey and/ ynanagementfy 
representation/ that the/ ICst Cy complete/. The/ indicated/ lhat one/ 
employee/ receOi/ed/ a terynCnation/ payment. The/ employee/ W(ay paid/ for 
90 houryof\facation/lecae/. Town/policy ^ayythe/employee/cannot carty 
over accrued/ vacation/ leave/. However, it doey not addre^ whether an/ 
e^yployeecan/he/pcUd/for vcicatCon/accrued/(vt the/time/of termlnatCon/. 
The/payYVventwaynotforvyiaXly approved/. 

ExceptCony: See/ohove/. 

M<ana^ementfy'Reyponjie< See/ManjO^ementfyCorrectlve/Action/Plan/. 

25. Obtain supporting documentation (e.g. cancelled checks, EFT documentation) relating to payroll 
taxes and retirement contributions during the fiscal period. Report whether the employee and 
employer portions of payroll taxes and retirement contributions, as well as the required reporting 
forms, were submitted to the applicable agencies by the required deadlines. 

We obtained/ the available/ docamentation/ for payroU/ ta^cey and/ 
retirement contrCbutiony during^ the period/. Vue to- die lack/ of 
documentation/of dxefCUng^datey, we were unxible to-verify that one of 
the four IKS form/ 9^1y W(vy filed/ on/ time. Alb federab payrcUb touu 
paymenty were made in/ a/ timely manner. One of die four Louisiana/ 
form/ L-ly and/ die correypondlnjg^ payment wcvy submitted/ p(vst die due 
date. Alb retirement contrCbutiony were remitted/ timely. However, die 
fCUng^ datey were not documented/ for leverab of die reporty. Therefore, 
we were unxMeto determine whether die reporty werefCled/tCmely. 

ExceptCony: See above. 

ManagementyKeyporne: See mxvnagementfy corrective action/plan/. 

Ethics (excluding nonprofits) 

26. Using the five randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #22 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above, obtain ethics compliance documentation from management and report whether the 
entity-maintained documentation to demonstrate that required ethics training was completed. 

for diree of die five empboyee^officio(by ^ebected/ in/ procedure #22, die 
Town/ did/ not have documentation/ to- demonstrate diat required/ ethlcy 
training^ way completed/. 

ExceptCony: See above. 

ManagementfyKeypome: See management^ y corrective action/plan/. 
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27. Inquire of management whether any alleged ethics violations were reported to the entity during the 
fiscal period. If applicable, review documentation that demonstrates whether management 
investigated alleged ethics violations, the corrective actions taken, and whether management's actions 
complied with the entity's ethics pohcy. Report whether management received allegations, whether 
management investigated allegations received, and whether the allegations were addressed in 
accordance with policy. 

Mci^nag-e^yi&nt wciy not aware^ of any aU^eged/ ethCcy vColatCony or reporty 
ofaUeg^d/ethCoyvColatCon^durCvig^the^fv&cal/perCod/. 

Debt Service (excluding nonprofits) 

28. If debt was issued during the fiscal period, obtain supporting documentation from the entity, and 
report whether State Bond Commission approval was obtained. 

VUe' noted/ no- new debt. 

E)cceptCony: None/. 

29. If the entity had outstanding debt during the fiscal period, obtain supporting docimientation from the 
entity and report whether the entity made scheduled debt service payments and maintained debt 
reserves, as required by debt covenants. 

iTie/Townmcuie/i<diedAAled/debtie^^Cce/payvnentyayrecjoCred/. The/Town 
not maCntulned/debtre^ervey a^regtAXred/hy debtcovenanty. 

E)cceptiony: See/above/. 

Man/Agement^yRe^ome/: See/ YmAJnagemenifycorre<tX^/e/actCon/plaJn/. 

30. If the entity had tax millages relating to debt service, obtain supporting documentation and report 
whether millage collections exceed debt service payments by more than 10% during the fiscal period. 
Also, report any millages that continue to be received for debt that has been paid off. 

)^e/noted/no-iMbKYViAJilagey. 

E)cceptCony: None/. 

Other 

31. Inquire of management whether the entity had any misappropriations of public funds or assets. If so, 
obtain/review supporting documentation and report whether the entity reported the misappropriation 
to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Hanagemjent ytated/ they hnew of no- yyvC^apprOprLcitCony of pablic/ -fandy 
or a^iety 

E)cceptCony: None/. 
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32. Observe and report whether the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by 
R.S. 24:523.1. This notice (available for download or print at www.lla.la.gov/hotline^ concerns the 
reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

We^ ohie^^ed^ the/ notCce/ ported/ tn/ the/ lobby of the^ TOWKV Hcdb 
However, CtCynotpoited/on/the/Town/yweb^ite/. 

^)cceptCony: See/above/. 

Ma^xagemersXfyKe^onye/: See/vyia4%agemer\tfy corrective/cLCttorvplcLyu 

33. If the practitioner observes or otherwise identifies any exceptions regarding management's 
representations in the procedures above, report the nature of each exception. 

See/coymner\ty under other procedures 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be 
the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
June 29,2018 
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